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E PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known} PHYSICAL APFEAHA‘}‘*CE

The Tappahannock Historic District is comprised of the balance of

those structures in the block bounded by Church Lane, Queen Street, Prince
Street and Cross Street, as well as a number of structures whose lots frount
on Prince Street from Church Lane east to the Rappahannock; the District
also includes portions of Water Street beginning with its intersection at
Prince Street and paralleling the river for approximately two blocks to the

The District also includes two structures in the block of Duke

Street from its intersection with Water Street extending one blecck to the

The principle axis of the District along Prince Street is charac-
by the county government center at che west end, by a commercial

district at the center.composed.of brick and frame shops mostly of recent

and by a residential neilghborhood at the east end including an old
nd a custom's house, both now converted into residences. Water

Street is dominated by large frame houses that have been converted for use
by Saint Margaret's School. The broad green sward on which these eight-

eenth and nineteenth century buildings are set extends almost uninterrupted
along the entire stretch of ihe school grounds. The brief portion of the
district along Duke Street includes both a large Greek Revival house and a

que Gothic Revival board and battenm Episcopal church.

The following inventory lists the District's more prominent

architecturally and historically significant structures:

Custom's House, 109 Prince Street. Brick with stucco, 1% stories
with a loft gable roof, three-bay front, interior chimmey, water-
table, nine-over-nine sash windows, three-level basement, west
entrance porch with scalloped bargeboards, two,story . orch on east
"with sawnwork balustrade. ~Built circa 1750; nineteenth century
additions.

Scot's Arms Tavern, 123 Prince Street, . Frame with clapboarding,
gable roof with interior end chlmney, five- -bay front, entrance with
three-light transom and Colonial Revival entrance po;ch, full base-
ment. Early-nineteenth century; two-bay hipped roof addition om
east side.

Five Cents and Dollar Store, 200 Prince Street. Frame with clap~
boarding, 2% stovries, Mansard roof and dormers with Colonial Revi-
val architraves, three-bay front, first floor store Zrcmt. Late-
nineteenth century; possibly incorporates an older building.

Ritchie Houéé, 227 Prince Street.,. - Brick laid in Flemish bond with

English bond below the beveled watertable on the.west end, 1% storieg

gable roof with dormers, five-bay front, T-shaped exterior end

chimneys. Early-eighteenth century; early clipped. gables now filled

in with framing and two bays added to the east end of the original
structure.
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" partially burned during a British attack on_ the town idf1814 now serves as

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Captain John Smith attempted '3 landing at the site of present-
day Tappahannock in 1608, and Bartholomew Hoskins patented the first land
there in 1645. Soon after thlS initial patentJa small village had deve-
loped as a result of the area's fine location. Y Known®to historiansag
"Hobbes His Hole,” the village had, in fact, the less-unusual name of
"Hobb's Hold" (meaning land holden under a grant) or so the authorities
insist.

The village, whether "Hole" ar "Hold", was formally chartered as
the Town of New Plymouth in 1682, Since the river was called Rappahannock
signifying "running water,” the port soon took on the Indian name of '
the running water’ or Tappahannock. The increasingly prominent port-
facility was selected as the county seat for Essex when that county was
formed from old Rappahannock County in 1692.

Ten years'prior to the American Revolution the town witnessed
patriotic fervor when four hundred men met in Tappahannock in the state's
strongest popular protest against the Stamp Act. The court house of 1728,

the Beale Memorial Baptist Church. Parts of the early glazed -header brick
work survive today in the church's nave.

Among the more significant pre-Revelutionary buildings in
Tappahannock are the early elghteenth century Anderson and Ritchie Houses.
The former was originally a 'prize house', that is, the building wherein
the "prizing" or compressing of tobacce into hogsheads took place. As
such it was located adjacent to the owner's plantationm. The Ritchie House
once part of a complex of three buildings, maintains its prominent position

on Prince Street. The early days of the Republic are represented architectus

by the Brockenbrough House, the Scot's Arms Tavern and the old Clerk's Offic
The town achieved national prominence during the nineteenth

century as the home of three of Jefferson's staunchest supporters. Known
as the "Essex Junto” Spencer Roane, Thomas Ritchie and John Brockenbrough
were cousins who tiroughout their diverse professions helped the Republican
party maintain its tight control of National politics during the first half
of the nineteenth century. Judge Spencer Roane, Chief Justice of the
Vlrglnia Supreme’ Court of Appeals, was a power in the Republican party.

He contributed many articles and letters - suing various pseudonyms - to hi

cousin Thomas Ritchie's paper, The Richmond Enquirer. Ritchie recognized
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0ld Clerk's Office, 307 Princz Street. Brick laid in Flemish bond, one
story, gable roof, :hree-bay front with central entrance, slightly pro-
jecting interior end chimneys with corbeled caps, quarter lunettes in
the gable ends. Built circa 1808; extensively renovated.

" Essex County Court House, Prince Street, Brick, one story, gable end

front with a pedimented portico using the Doric order in a di-style in

antis form, central entrance with elliptical fanlight and three light

side lights, square belfry supports octagonal cupola, triple hung win~
dows. Greek Revival. Built in 1848; renovated in 1926 by Alfred I.
duPont; restored in 1967 after the fire of the previous year.

Debtor's Prison, 321 Prince Street. Brick laid in Flemish bond, one
story gable roof, three-bay front, central entrance with stone sill.
Built ¢irca 1769; addition on the rear.

Beale Memorial Baptist Church (Early Essex County Court House), Church
lLane. Flemish bond brick nave with glazed headers and beveled water-
table, one story, gable roof, round headed windows, central entrance
tower with open belfry and transepts. Georgian. Nave built in 1728;
changes include bricking-in of arcaded porch for smaller windows and
the late-nineteenth century transept and rear additions.

Henley House, 314 Water Lane. Frame with clapboarding, 1% stories,
gable roof with dormers, five-bay front, exterior end chimney, three-
bay porch with sawnwork, multiple rear projections includiag hip-on-
gambrel roofed ell. Built cjirca 1718; rear ell addition built circa

1757; nineteenth century rear additioms.

Anderton House, 314 Water Lane. Frame with clapboarding, 2 stories,
gable roof, seven-bay front, wing additions form H-shaped plan, modillio
cornice, wings feature pedimented ends with demi-octagonal bay windows,
six-over-six and nine-over-nine sash windows. Built circa 1750;
nineteenth century wing additions.

Brockenbrough House, Water Lane. Frame with clapboarding, two stories,
hipped roof, five-bay front, central entrance flanked by two projecting
hipped roof pavillions, interior end chimneys, modillion cornice,
entrance porch with sawnwork balustrade, pedimented vestibule on east
front. Built late-aighteenth century; two story addition om south
end.

St. Margaret's Hall, 444 Water Lane, Frame with clapboarding, two
stories, hipped roof with balustraded deck, five-bay central block
flanked by six-bay wings, modillion cornice, Colonial Revival entrance
porch, four interior end chimneys. Built late-eighteenth century;

nineteenth century wing additions.
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Roane-Wright House, 203 Duke Street. Brick with stucco,two stories,
hipped roof with four interior end chimeys, modillion cornice, Doric
entrance porch. Greek Revival. Built circa 1850,

St. John's Episcopal Church, Duke Street. Frame with board and batten
siding, one story, gable roof, central entance tower with modified
lancet arched door and quatre-foil window and slender steeple above,
modified lancet arched windows. Gothic Revival. Built 1837-49;
two-bay addition built on south end in 1972.
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Tappahannock Historic District consists of that block bounded by Church Lane,
Queen's Street, Cross Street, and Prince Street, as well as that area
particularly described as having the following boundaries: from a point
between Prince and Queen Streets on Cross Street being at the rear property
line of 227 Prince Street; thence east but paralleling Prince Street to
Rappahannock River; thence following shore line of said river.to the
southernmost boundary of St. Margaret's School, following that line west to
its intersection with Water Street; thence north on Water Street to the
point marking the rear property line of those lots fronting on the south
front of Duke Street; thence west along said property line to Cross Street;
thence north along cross Street to the beginning point.
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as a pioneer in the development of modern journalism, was an editior of
national prominence. The third member of the group was Dr. John
Brockenbrough, President of the Bank of Virginia. Ritchie's family owned

the house on Prince Street and the Roane family built their residence on
Duke Street.

This compact district of low-scale structures centers around the three
eighteenth century streets of Prince, Duke and Water Streets and contains
the balance of those houses and buildings associated with Tappahannock's
maritime and political history. The port town's most convincing case for
architectural history occurs in the court block where the 1728 and 1848 courttr
houses stand together with their subordinate Debtor's Prison and Clerk's
Office flanking and lending scale to the newer structures. Although their
dates differ by approximately forty years, the prison and clerk's office
exhibit a marked similarity that has been echoed by other court facilities in
more recent years, Setto the east of the heavily commercialized Route 360
(Church Lane), the district boasts its own brick commercial activity,
tempered by the presence of tree-line residential streets and the broad
Rappahannock nearby.
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U.5.53.5. 74" quadrangle (scale:1:24000)
Tappahannock, Va. 1944

TAPPAHANNOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT

latitude longitude
V1137055 149n 76051 142"
37955',9" 760951 1'20"
SE37055132M 76°51 120"
SW37955132" 76951 142"
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